ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 3, 2015
3:30 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Cathy G essel

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Berta Gardner

VMEMBERS ABSENT

Al l menbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATI ON REPORT TO THE LEG SLATURE
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

ESTER COX, Chair

State Board of Education

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the Report to the Legislature from
the State Board of Educati on.

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to the State
Board' s report.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:30: 14 PM

CHAIR MKE DUNLEAVY called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:30 p.m Present at the call to

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -1- February 3, 2015



order were Senators Huggins, Gessel, Gardner, Stevens, and
Chai r Dunl eavy.

State Board of Education Report to the Legislature

3:30: 34 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced the busi ness before the commttee was a
report fromthe State Board of Education.

3:31:27 PM

ESTER COX, Chair, State Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent, said she was here to report to the legislature as
required by SB 1. She noted that every governor, |egislature,
and educator would like to see fewer regul ations; however, wth
t he passage of HB 278 there are a multitude of new regul ations.
She noted the detailed report and advised that she would follow
t he handout.

She said the first topic is HB 278 and the changes it nakes. She
expl ai ned that every regul ation goes through the Board, but also
goes out for public coment which can result in changes nade
The first change HB 278 nmakes is to repeal the Hi gh School
Graduation Qualifying Exam (HSGQE). The second change elim nates
the mandate for 11th graders to take W rkKeys and replaced it
with the choice to take SAT, ACT, or WrkKeys, one of which wll

be paid for by the state. She opined this will result in a
better turnout for the test due to the affordability of it. The
bill also addressed deferred jury duty for for teachers in a

one-star or two-star school.

She related that another acconplishnment of HB 278 is students'
ability to challenge courses. The district or teacher wll
design an assessnment of the course and charge a nomnal fee. It
is up to the district whether or not to give a grade.
Resi dential school applications are also addressed in HB 278.
The bill sets an annual period for residential school
application and a flexible count date for variable-term
residential schools.

She said the bill also speaks to charter schools. It deals with
bus transportation to charter schools and also says that if the
| ocal board rejects the charter application there is an appea
process. The bill also provides for Science, Technol ogy,
Engi neering, and Math (STEM grants for underserved mddle
school students wunder two prograns: Alaska Native Science
Engi neeri ng Program (ANSEP) and the Southeast Regi onal Resource
Center (SERRC). O her regulations are a new state |aw regarding

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 2- February 3, 2015



restraint and seclusion of students and a requirenent of three
math credits to graduate.

3:40: 19 PM

M5. COX discussed the Alaska Measures of Progress (AW). There
are two tests for grades 3-10, |anguage arts and math, which are
geared toward the Al aska Acadenm c Standards. There are fewer

guestions on the tests and the 2015 AW wll be used as a
baseline. The expectation is that the scores wll be [|ower
because standards are nore rigorous. Students wll have access
to practice tests bef ore t he conput er - based t est IS
adm ni st er ed. Paper and pencil is an option in certain
ci rcunst ances. She expl ai ned t hat t eachers will use
"di psticking" to check student progress toward goals. She said
students wll be expected to analyze the question, perform

mul ti-step tasks, solve problens, and apply what they know to
new situations. She noted that the latter is probably the nobst
difficult. Test result data will be distributed to districts,
teachers, and parents, but no individual scores will go to the
federal governnent.

3:43: 55 PM

M5. COX reviewed the Al aska School Performance |Index (ASPlI), the
new 5-star rating for schools. This year 501 schools were rated
and 97 percent of students attend 3-star schools or better. The
ASPI neasures student progress and achievenent in reading,
witing, and math, graduation rate, student performance in
college, and career assessnents; SAT, ACT, and WbrkKeys.
Alternative and small schools are nore difficult to rate and the
scoring system was altered to accommobdate this. Reward School s
must neet specific criteria; all schools can neet this criteria.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if anyone had any questi ons.

3:46: 19 PM

SENATOR GARDNER noticed an increase in requests, from 5
districts to 23 districts, for the state waiver that says 70
percent of district funding be used for instruction. She asked
why that happened.

M KE HANLEY expl ained that there are two counts during a schoo
year and nost schools cone in on the first count. The waiver
requests did not triple and nornmally range in the 20's. Those
five districts thought they would make it, but didn't, and with
assistance were able to succeed at a |later date.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 3- February 3, 2015



SENATOR GARDNER asked about contracting out for an assessnent to
go with the new standards and the tineline.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY expl ained that DEED put out an RFP and the
procurenent team reviewed the proposals. The Achievenent and
Assessnent Institute (AAl) of Kansas was the high-scoring
vender. The departnent is currently working with AAl to devel op
the new assessnent, which wll begin in March of this school
year. Practice tests that provide dipsticks are already in place
and are optional.

SENATOR STEVENS expressed concern with the potential for |ower
scores. He asked if there is a way to prepare for that.

COM SSI ONER  HANLEY said nessaging wll be critical and
information has already gone out to the public, school
districts, and school admnistration. There is a new baseline
with higher expectations and there is no way to conpare the
previous assessnent wth the new one. He anticipates that
students will do better than in the past, but wll not reach the
hi gher bar yet. He pointed out that fourth through eighth grade
students previously were 70 percent to 80 percent proficient on
state scores, but they weren't that high on a national test. The
new testing will be better aligned with national testing.

SENATOR GARDNER asked about students who dropped out of school
in anticipation of not passing the HSGQE and did not finish
graduation requirenents. She asked if the Board or departnent
has di scussed how to hel p these students get a dipl oma.

M5. COX said that student has not been a topic of conversation
but probably shoul d be.

SENATOR GARDNER said the Barrow School District estimted 136
students in the region fit the category.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the students are under the age of 20.
SENATOR GARDNER sai d sone nmay not be.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said that is problematic because after the age of
20 they cannot enroll in high school.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY said it's 22 for special education students.
He stated that there are no prohibitions for students to cone
back and earn credits until they are 20. A school could set up
opportunities for students to earn the credits.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 4- February 3, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how a school qualifies as a Reward Schoo
under ASPI .

3:54:39 PM

M5. COX related that a Reward School is a school in Alaska that
is in the highest ten percent in the performance index for grade
| evel s, includes grade 12, and for the two nost recent years had
a graduation cohort of ten students or nore, and a conbined
graduation rate over the two years of at |east 85 percent. |If
there are fewer than ten students, all but one nust graduate
during those two years.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked where the criteria cane from

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY responded that the departnent wanted to
recogni ze schools that were doing very well. The departnent also
recogni zes high progress schools - the top ten percent in growth
- as Reward School s.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY restated the question.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said the regulation was devel oped by DEED
and adopted by the State Board.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY advi sed that 4-star and 5-star schools should be
rewarded by being left alone. He mmintained that resources are
l[imted and there is no point in the extra focus. Rather, focus
on the 1-star and 2-star schools.

M5. COX said they do | eave them al one. She saw Reward School s as
an incentive.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said he feels they are required to do sonething
t hat consunes resources in a clinmate of dimnishing resources.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY suggested | ooking at specifics because DEED
doesn't interject itself into schools very often. He offered to
have a foll ow up conversation

CHAI R DUNLEAVY suggested looking at laws and regul ations that
mght free up nore resources. He said he isn't sure what that

m ght be, but he's started asking school districts to submt
suggesti ons.

He asked how ASPI cane about.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 5- February 3, 2015



M5. COX recalled that before ASPI there was Adequate Yearly
Progress (AYP) and it was punitive. It had 37 categories and if
a school mssed in one category, it failed. The idea behind ASPI
was to build a rating system that had a built-in incentive. The
U S. Departnent of Education was asked if ASPI would be
perm ssible and the state got the go ahead to inplenent it. She
concluded that ASPI builds incentives and nakes students feel
good.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if ASPlI is a waiver to AYP under NCLB
M5. COX said yes.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY summari zed that the waiver was as a result of the
state's relationship with the federal government's NCLB. He
asked for the renedi ation plan for a 1-star school.

VB. COX described the State System of Suppor t (SSO
S). She said SSOS coaches are contracted to do nonthly five-day
visits to a school and to do distance coaching in between
visits. They work on an inprovenent plan with the school. The
departnment designates districts as Tier I, Il, or 1l to
determ ne what |evel of support SSOS will give. She described
the differences between Priority Schools and Focus School s.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how | ong the renediation will take.

COM SSI ONER HANLEY said the responsibility resides with the
| ocal school board and school |eadership. The departnent's job
is to assist themto make the inprovenents.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY recogni zed that State Board nenbers Sue Hull from
Fai r banks and Kat hl een Yarr from Ketchi kan were onli ne.

4: 09: 08 PM
MS. COX returned to di scuss SSCS

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY said the departnment is working directly with
Priority and Focus School s.

M5. COX discussed the Al aska Learning Network (AKLN). It is run
by the University of Alaska - Southeast's School of Education
and has partners with all 54 Alaska districts. The districts pay
enrol Il ment fees and grant credits. The curriculum requirenents
are there as well as a broad variety of other courses. The fal
enroll ment was 376 students and AKLN is a lifesaver for small
schools that have a limted curricul um bank

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 6- February 3, 2015



SENATOR GARDNER said AKLN serves all |evels of students, but she
is concerned about the $850,000 state cost. She asked if the 376
nunber is classes or students.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said it is the nunber of enrollnents in
cl asses, so the 367 could represent fewer students.

SENATOR GARDNER did the math and highlighted that it's expensive
per student.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY countered that AKLN does nore than offer and
teach courses, including the training of Advanced Pl acenent
teachers, the devel opnent of courses, and the devel opnent of an
Al aska Studies class. He noted that |ast year the legislature
put intent |anguage in place for AKLN to be self-sustaining and
the departnent is working on that.

SENATOR GARDNER said it is a valuable program but the cost is a
concern.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY pointed out that sonme things will go away due to
the current $3.8 billion deficit.

4:15: 30 PM

M5. COX nentioned the Al aska Statew de Mentor Project, a teacher
mentoring program that began in 2004-2005. This year there are
36 nentors. It works because it is teachers talking to teachers.
She said the teacher retention rate while using nentor teachers
rose from 68 percent to 79 percent. Half of new teachers in the
US quit in the first five years. In Al aska, 94 percent of
mentored teachers are still in the field five years later. She
said she didn't have the fiscal note.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if there is data on teachers who stay and
weren't nentored, versus those who were, and how their students
per f or med.

COM SSIONER  HANLEY said DEED has that dat a. St at ewi de
assessnents showed that students in classes of a new teacher
scored significantly lower than their peers in a seasoned
teacher's classroom but they scored simlarly with nentored
teachers. He said UA has a grant to study this issue, so there
will be hard data a year-and-a-half from now

4:19:18 PM

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -7- February 3, 2015



M5. COX noted that M. Edgecunbe H gh School is very successful.
The State Board is the school board for M. Edgecunbe, which is
a 4-star school, and is «currently wundergoing a curriculum
revi ew. In fall 2014, students from 107 villages were
represented with an attendance rate of 96 percent and a five-
year graduation rate of 98.5 percent. It is a school to be proud
of .

SENATOR GARDNER recalled that in the fifth year the kids get
certificates.

4:21: 14 PM

LES MORSE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED), answered questions related to M.
Edgecunbe. He said he is unaware of a certificate, but the
school partners with UAS for Career and Technical Education
(CTE) program ng.

SENATOR GARDNER offered that students often stay at M.
Edgecunbe for five years because they are engaged in the CTE
progr amns.

MR. MORSE said he'd look into it.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if M. Edgecunbe <could be wused for
variable terns or for sunmer prograns |ike ANSEP, when the
school is unoccupi ed.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY said it is a possibility there and at other
schools statewide in order to maxim ze resources.

M5. COX added that M. Edgecunbe picks up students in January,
but it is difficult for themto catch up.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said a report on M. Edgecunbe will be presented
to the commttee at a later date. He asked if the State Board is
t he school board for M. Edgecunbe.

M5. COX said they were; the other board an advisory board.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked what chance a student in a 1-star school
woul d have to go to M. Edgecunbe.

M5. COX said she didn't have an answer, but the board should
deci de whet her the opportunity should be extended to students in
l-star and 2-star schools. She pointed out that a student from a
district wthout a high school gets rated higher in the

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 8- February 3, 2015



application than a student in a district with a high school. She
said there should be a discussion about whether that should be
extended to districts with | ow perform ng school s.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY commented on ways to make a student in a |ow
perform ng school whole. He also questioned what happens to a
school's score if high perform ng students | eave.

SENATOR STEVENS said the other question is what happens to the
remai ni ng students.

MS. COX assured that will be a conversation for the board.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the concepts of best practices and equity
are | ongstandi ng, but sonetines the seasoned teacher is teaching
the high-perform ng students while the aide is teaching the |ow
perform ng students. He questioned what public education should
be about and opined that the subject wll nake for a good
di scussi on.

COMWM SSIONER  HANLEY said the departnent has had this
conversation and the superintendent of M. Edgecunbe is | ooking
at the 107 villages to determne the star rating of the schools
t here.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY referenced page 2, paragraph 3, in the State
Board's report and questioned when the provision "Al aska
regulations do not require school district superintendents to
have a superintendent endorsenent on their administrator's
certificate" canme about.

MR. MORSE thought it was in the md-90s. He offered to check on
it.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked the status of the $5 mllion investnent to
i nprove Internet speed in public schools.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY reported that districts have applied and the
departnment has identified which districts will be getting the
funding. The goal is bring every school up to 10 negabits.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for a list of who won the grant and how
much it was for.

MR. MORSE said Chair Dunleavy's staff has the report.

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 9- February 3, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY directed attention to page 3 - restraint and
seclusion of students. He said he is getting feedback that this
provision is a cost to school districts, such as for training.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed there is a cost for training.

SENATOR GARDNER requested the course conpletion rate for people
who enrolled in the AKLN program

4:35:26 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about "homegrown" teachers.

M5. COX said that's for Native teachers to get involved in
educati on.

SENATOR HUGGE NS stressed the inportance of teacher preparation.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed and added that one area where the
board and the university collaborate is in teacher preparation
prograns to ensure quality teachers. To have a quantity of
teachers requires incentivizing students to nobve into the
pr of essi on.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how much the governor proposes to cut DEED
and the inpact it will have.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY said the request was to cut 5 to 8 percent -

$32 mllion for this year. In order to cut beyond that the
department will have to go "into the fornula." The inpact wll
be felt by students, schools, and communities. In four districts
it will inpact the anount of the |ocal contribution, as well.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the cost of professional devel opnent
progranms. He requested an overview of the progranms and what was
pur chased.

COM SSI ONER HANLEY said they'Il get that information. The
requirenent is for 10 professional developnment days and they
vary w dely.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY asked if schools have to file their staff
devel opnent plans with the departnent.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said they do not have to do that anynore.

4:42:16 PM

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -10- February 3, 2015



SENATOR GARDNER asked about the push for early grade teachers to
take classes on strategies of teaching reading. She asked if
there is a benefit to that.

M5. COX said reading has to happen in the early grades and the
board has instituted a screening for early childhood. If the
school policy is that students don't start school wuntil first
grade the school can apply for a waiver fromthe screening until
second grade. The board looks at the strength of teacher
instruction in |lower grades and she believes it should be | ooked
at in all grades.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY said nost people would support expertise in
reading in the early grades. He pointed out that it wll take
resources to inplenent literacy instruction.

SENATOR STEVENS asked about the status of the Ketchikan | awsuit
on local contribution. He said communities he is associated with
are proud to "fund to the cap.” He inquired how nmuch noney is
contributed to education statew de by |ocal communities.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the lawsuit is ongoing and he assuned the
commi ssi oner woul d speak in generalities.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed. The state has appeal ed and has asked
for a stay. He described the suit in generalities regarding
dedi cated funds. Local <contribution inpact on education |ast
year was just over $220 million. The judge did not declare that
| ocal contributions were unconstitutional, but the nmethod in
which they were collected was. He ternmed it a "dedicated fund,"
which is not allowed. He also said the state is not required to
fully fund education. Considerations on the table are whether
the state will replace the local contribution and whether to
change the way | ocal contributions are coll ected.

SENATOR STEVENS asked when the stay ruling is expected.

COWMWM SSI ONER HANLEY said he didn't know. They asked for an
expedited response, but he did not know if that would be
gr ant ed.

4:50: 38 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY referenced page 9 and asked for an update on the
Al aska Digital Teaching Initiative, a three-year, $15 mllion
denonstrati on project.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- February 3, 2015



COWM SSI ONER HANLEY corrected that it is a $5 mllion program
and the update is on page 10. The idea was for each of the three
schools to reach beyond their boundaries and partner with a

small, renote school districts to provide resources. A conponent
for the digital teaching acadeny is still being considered.
CHAI R DUNLEAVY referenced page 11 and asked if Tier IlIl schools

are left al one.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that they are recognized as Reward
School s; nothing is added or taken away.

SENATOR GARDNER sai d maybe it's worKking.

4:53:28 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about scoring intensive needs students.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said that's been cleared up. There was a
spi ke several years ago in the nunber of intensive needs
students with no increase in population. An audit was done and
only a few cases were chal | enged.

SENATOR STEVENS asked about the tinefrane for the teacher
mentoring program results and if the program is rural, versus
ur ban.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY replied it does not speak to urban or rural,
just teachers who stayed in Alaska. Currently, all new teachers
are nentored and there is no control group. Anchorage is
begi nning a new study with a control group.

SENATOR STEVENS asked what year it was when the retention rate
was 68 percent.

MR. MORSE thought that was current data based on research up
through last year since the beginning of the program in 2004-
2005. He offered to verify that information.

COWM SSI ONER  HANLEY concluded that 68 percent was at the
begi nni ng of the program

4:57:21 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for cl osing conments.

IVS. COX  highlighted t hat Comm ssi oner Hanl ey enbr aced

articulating K-16 and the State Board is neeting with the Board
of Regents. Topics of discussion are dual credit, CTE, a program

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- February 3, 2015



from Washington called Running Start, and teacher preparation.
She asked the nenbers to carefully review career and technical
education on page 12, especially regarding grants. The
departnments of education, labor, and UA are partners in the
pl an.

She noted school and student data on pages 17 and 18. She said
the four-year graduation rate is 71 percent and the five-year
graduation rate is 76 percent. Since 2004-2005, the dropout rate
has declined from 6 percent to 4 percent. She concluded that
sonet hi ng good i s happening in public education.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY commented on the variety of stakeholders in
education and the unprecedented drop in revenue. He nuintained

that everyone wll have to work together to get through the
revenue shortfall in order to have a quality program He
suggested that the state will have to address regulations and

laws and | ook at federal grant nandates. The goal is to help
shepherd this crucial state service through these difficult
times, politics aside.

5:04:13 PM

There being no further business to conme before the conmmittee
Chair Dunl eavy adjourned the Senate Education Standing Commttee
neeting at 5:04 p. m

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -13- February 3, 2015



